
 

 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2014–03 

REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 10, 2014 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

PRELIMINARY MEETING 

6:00 P.M. Work Session with Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation System 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:00 P.M. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk 
(*).  Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council 
Member so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the 
General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 1 of 60



 

Agenda No. 2014–03 FEBRUARY 10, 2014 Page 2 of 2 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4611 – A Resolution Amending the Schedule of Fees and 
Charges for Services by Adjusting Refuse Collection Rates and Certain 
Occupational License Application Fees.  Introduced by Mayor Eberhart.   

 
*b) Resolution No. 4612 – A Resolution Awarding a Contract to NC Machinery 

for a Self-Contained Snow Blower in the Amount of $436,040.00.  
Introduced by Mayor Eberhart.   

 
*c) Resolution No. 4613 – A Resolution Pleading with the Alaska Governor 

and Legislature to Restore the Rights of Sufferers to Obtain Medical 
Marijuana, with Prescription and Without Prejudice.  Introduced by Council 
Member Hilling.   

 
*d) Ordinance No. 5936 – An Ordinance Amending FGC Sections 2-486 and 

2-487 Regarding the Clay Street Cemetery Commission.  Introduced by 
Mayor Eberhart.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
 *a) Permanent Fund Review Board Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2013 
 
 *b) Appointment to the Landscape Review and Appeals Commission 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Labor Negotiation: IBEW and PSEA 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 2 of 60



 Introduced by:  Mayor John Eberhart 
Finance Committee Review: February 4, 2014 

 Date: February 10, 2014 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4611 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES BY ADJUSTING REFUSE 

COLLECTION RATES AND CERTAIN OCCUPATIONAL 
LICENSE APPLICATION FEES 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 5744 adopted the City Schedule of Fees and Charges for 

Services to be amended by resolution; section 37 of Ordinance 5744 provided that 
refuse collection rates be adjusted each year to reflect the annual change in the 
Anchorage Consumer Price Index as well as changes in the cost of fuel and tipping fees 
charged by the Fairbanks North Star Borough landfill; and 

 
WHEREAS, the change in the annual consumer price index for 2013 was 3.1 

percent; in addition, landfill tipping fees increased by $7.00/ton; and 
 
WHEREAS, criminal history reports are conducted for only certain occupational 

licenses and the cost to perform criminal history reports is the same for those 
occupational licenses and, therefore, the application fee should be the same for all 
applicants; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, to approve the attached amended version of the Schedule 
of Fees and Charges for Services amending the refuse collection rates, effective April 1, 
2014, and the application fee for those occupational licenses that require criminal 
history reports, effective upon passage.   

 
 PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of February 2014. 
 
 

___________________________ 
John Eberhart, Mayor 

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT   
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
______________________________ _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 3 of 60



Category Code Sec. Topic Current Fee
Resolution 

4611
Unit

14-123 $       100.00 $         75.00 Application Fee; non-refundable
14-129 $       400.00 Two Year License
14-131 $  10,000.00 Bond

 $  20,000.00 
Out of state not registered in at least two other 
states

$       100.00 $         75.00 Application Fee; non refundable; each person
$       200.00 2 year license - each person

14-294 Plumber/mechanical Contractor
$       200.00 Non refundable application & Exam Fee
$       200.00 3 year license - each applicant
$       100.00 Non refundable application & Exam Fee
$       200.00 3 year license - each applicant

14-433  $       250.00 2 Year license - entity
14-361 Commercial Refuse  $    2,000.00 2 Year license - entity

 $       100.00 
One time Application; non refundable, entity & each 
employee or agent

 $    2,000.00 Two year license
86-51 $       100.00 One time Application; non refundable

 $       400.00 Two year license fee - entity
$       200.00 Per Car lic; 2 years ($100 vehicle transfer fee)

86-55  $       100.00 Transfer fee - car or entity
$         75.00 Each time App Fee; non refundable
$       100.00 2 year license - each driver

Category Code Sec. Topic Current Fee
Resolution 

4611
Unit

66-42 Refuse Collection rates  $         73.00  $         77.00 Rounded from $76.72

66-43 Senior Rate  $         54.00  $         57.00 Rounded from $57.14

66-42       
66-69

Oversized Refuse Pickup  $         33.00  $         35.00 per trip - Rounded from $35.48

Chauffeurs License

Commercial Transport Vehicle Company

Journeymen 

Gaming Establishment

Massage Practitioner

Master Plumber

Refuse 
Collection

Occupational 

14-256

14-502

86-80

City of Fairbanks Fee Schedule
As of Resolution 4611 - Effective 04/01/2014 (Refuse) and Effective Date (Application Fees)

Master Operator's License

Private Detective

1 M:\!indiv\city clerk files\Fee Schedule\Resolution 4611 ‐ Garbage Rates and Occupational License Application Fee.xlsx
AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 4 of 60



Introduced by:  Mayor John Eberhart 
Introduced: February 10, 2014 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4612 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO NC 
MACHINERY FOR A SELF-CONTAINED SNOW BLOWER IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $436,040.00 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with FGC Chapter 54, Article IV, Competitive Bidding, 

bids were solicited for a Self-Contained Snow Blower; and 
   

WHEREAS, the successful bidder was NC Machinery, selected as the low and 
responsive bidder; and 

 
WHEREAS, funding was appropriated in the 2014 Capital budget,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the bid by NC Machinery in the amount of four 
hundred, thirty-six thousand forty dollars and 00/cents ($436,040.00) 
is hereby approved for award; and 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 
Purchase Order to award the contract for the amount of the bid. 
   

PASSED, APPROVED and EFFECTIVE this 10th day of February, 2014. 

 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN EBERHART, MAYOR 
 
 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney  

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 5 of 60



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

MATERIAL DESCRIPTION SNOW BLOWER 
BID NUMBER: FB-14-01 DATE TABULATION SENT: 28-Jan
BID DUE DATE: 1/28/2014

NC MACHINERY SHEET 1 OF 1
VENDOR NC CRAIG TAYLOR 

Apparent Low and Responsive ADDRESS

Bidder Per Specifications. PHONE NO 452-7251 452-1192
CONTACT Adam Hirstein Rich Dunham 
F.O.B. FBKS FBKS FBKS FBKS FBKS
FAX NO.

VIA

DATE DATE TERMS

EMAIL ahirstein@ncmachinery.com rich.d@craigtaylorequipment.com
ITEM 
NO

QUAN 
TITY

UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 1 436,040.00    436,040.00            462,220.00   462,220.00       -                 -               -           

LARUE T70 2     

CR420S      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

AWARD PRICE 436,040.00 462,220.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0% -                     0% -                 0% -               0% -             0% -         

-                     -                 -               -             -         

436,040.00 462,220.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

436,040.00    

TOTAL PRICE:

LOCAL PREFERENCE:

DISCOUNT:

NET PRICE

DESCRIPTION

SNOW BLOWER 

MODEL RPM TECH /KODIAK AM

TABULATION OF BIDS

PREPARED BY: Antonio C. Shumate

APPR.
ENGRG/PURCH.              

REASON:

RECOMMEND:

U:\RESOLUTIONS\RESOLUTIONS - 2014\Resolution 4612 Attachment FB-14-01 Bid Recap Self Contained Snow Blower.xlsx 2/5/2014AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 6 of 60



 Introduced by:  Council Member Hilling 
 Date: February 10, 2014 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4613 
 

A RESOLUTION PLEADING WITH THE ALASKA GOVERNOR AND 
LEGISLATURE TO RESTORE THE RIGHTS OF SUFFERERS TO OBTAIN 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA, WITH PRESCRIPTION AND WITHOUT PREJUDICE 
 
WHEREAS, all adults of sane mind have the right to medicines of their choice, 

notwithstanding many governments' proscription of many medicines; and 
 
WHEREAS, marijuana has been proven unequivocally to ease pain and suffering 

arising from a multitude of illnesses and diseases; and 
 
WHEREAS, the state of Alaska, in its benevolence, has granted the privilege to 

the adult population of exercising their right to possess and ingest marijuana as 
prescribed by medical doctors, per Alaska’s medical marijuana act, codified at AS 
17.37.010-070; and 

 
WHEREAS, state law nevertheless makes no provision either for manufacture or 

for distribution of any such medicine, but rather makes it a felony to do so, per AS 
11.71.040(a)(3) and (a)(5); and 

 
WHEREAS, therefore, patients often or usually are effectively encouraged or 

compelled to commit felonies to provide or acquire such a prescribed medicine; and 
 
WHEREAS, multitudinous pleas to the Alaska State Government to redress this 

blatant inconsistency have had no statutory effect, whilst enormous suffering goes 
unrelieved, and the rights of patients, doctors and providers continue abrogated;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, that Governor Parnell and the Alaska State Legislature 
take up this matter with urgency, by having legislation passed which restores the liberty 
of Alaskan adults easily to have marijuana prescriptions filled by entities whose rights to 
manufacture and distribute are simultaneously made clear. 

 
 PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of February 2014. 
 

___________________________ 
John Eberhart, Mayor 

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT   
APPROVED:   
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
______________________________ _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 7 of 60



Sponsored by:  Mayor Eberhart 
Introduced:  February 10, 2014 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5936 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FGC SECTIONS 2-486 AND 2-487 
REGARDING THE CLAY STREET CEMETERY COMMISSION 

 
 WHEREAS, in July of 2010, the City Council created the Clay Street Cemetery 
Commission by passing Ordinance No. 5813 that enacted FGC Sections 2-485 through 2-488; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, FGC Sec. 2-487, which established the composition of the five-member 
commission, was amended by Ordinance No. 5821 on November 22, 2010; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the confirmation of the appointments to the Commission, it was 
determined that not all seated members were residents of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the commission may be better served by a cross-section of 
members from both inside and outside the city limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the council believes that the Clay Street Cemetery Commission needs 
administrative support from city staff and that the appointment of the City Clerk as a liaison 
would be beneficial; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the requirement for recording permanent records or minutes of the meetings 
was omitted from the originating ordinance.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS, 
ALASKA, HEREBY ENACTS the following:   
 
SECTION 1.  That Fairbanks General Code Sections 2-486 and 2-487, are hereby amended as 
follows [new text in underlined bold font, deleted text in strikthrough font]:   
 

Sec. 2-486. Duties and powers.  
 
 The commission shall:  
 

(a) Advise the council and mayor regarding the restoration, improvement and 
maintenance of the Clay Street Cemetery.  

 
(b) Conduct regular public meetings, including public hearings required as a 

condition of receipt of grants.  
 
(c) Provide and update a long-term plan for the cemetery.  
 
(d) If authorized by the city council, convene into executive session in 

accordance with state law.  
 
(e) Establish its rules of procedure.    
 

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 8 of 60



Ordinance No. 5936 
Page 2 

(f) Keep permanent records or minutes of all meetings.  The minutes 
shall promptly be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be 
open to public inspection. 

 
Sec. 2-487. Composition. 
 
The membership of the Clay Street Commission shall be five members as follows:  
 
(a)   Five voting members, three of whom must be residents of the city, 

appointed by the city mayor and confirmed by the city council: 
 

1.  One member active in the study of Fairbanks history. 
2.  One member with experience or interest in maintaining the 
cemetery. 
3.  Three at-large public members or two at-large public members 
if a council member is appointed to the commission. 

 
(b)   The City Public Works Director, or designee, shall be an ex officio 

member of the commission. 
 
(c)   The chairperson shall be selected from among the commission’s members 

by the commission. 
 
(d) The City Clerk shall supply the commission with administrative 
support.   
 

SECTION 2.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the _____ day of February 2014. 
 
 
              
       John Eberhart, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

       ____________________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

 

AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 9 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 10 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 11 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 12 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 13 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 14 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 15 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 16 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 17 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 18 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 19 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 20 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 21 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 22 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 23 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 24 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 25 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 26 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 27 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 28 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 29 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 30 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 31 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 32 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 33 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 34 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 35 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 36 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 37 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 38 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 39 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 40 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 41 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 42 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 43 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 44 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 45 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 46 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 47 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 48 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 49 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 50 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 51 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 52 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 53 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 54 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 55 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 56 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 57 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 58 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 59 of 60



AGENDA PACKET - February 10, 2014 Page 60 of 60


	AGENDA - February 10, 2014
	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4611
	Resolution No. 4612
	Resolution No. 4613
	Ordinance No. 5936

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Permanent Fund Review Board Minutes of 10/23/13
	Appointment to Landscape Review & Appeals Commission




